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1. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Background Information

The Youth Enterprise Development Fund was established under Legal Notice No.63 of May 2007.
The entity is domiciled in Kenya and has offices in all the counties in Kenya. The Fund falls under
Ministry of ICT, Innovation and Youth Affairs which is responsible for general policy and stralegic
direction of the Fund.

b) Principal Activities

The principal purpose/mission of the Youth Enterprise Development Fund is to increase gconomic
opportunities for, and participation by Kenyan youth in nation building.

The Fund was established in order 10;

. Provide loans to and for on-lending to youth enterprises

«  Attract and facilitate investment in micro, small and medium enterprises oriented
commercial infrastructure that will be beneficial to youth enterprises

«  Support youth oriented micro, small and medium enterprises to develop linkages with
large enterprises

- Facilitate marketing of products and services of youth enterprises both in the domestic

and the international markets
«  Provide business development services to youth enterprises
. Facilitate employment of youth in the international labour market

Qur Vision

Economically empowered Kenyan youth running sustainable enterprises.

Qur Mission

To increase economic opportunitics for and participation of Kenyan youth in job creation, through
innovative affordable financing, enterprise development and strategic partnerships.

Our Core Values
The Fund endeavours to uphold the following core values to ensure effective and efTicient delivery:

 Customer focus: The Fund is committed to consultation and participation to ensure
responsiveness 1o the needs and aspirations of the Kenyan youth.

Creativity and innovation: The Fund endeavours to cultivate and promote a culture of adopting
and processes that create new value in the delivery of services 1o the

technological driven ideas
Kenyan youth.
iii.  Equity and fairness: The FFund is driven by fairness and impartiality in service provision to all,
iv.  Professionalism: The Fund will adhere to a prescribed code of conduct and standards in the

discharge ol duties

i Pap
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voo Integrity nnd acconntubility: he Fand will obsery

fransparency in service provision,

(e) Key Manngement

¢ g moral and ethical atinlndds o well i

The Youth Enterprise Development Fund s day-to-day manngement b nder the following ey

Orpans!
Honrd of Directors
Chiel xecutive O1Tieer

Management

() Fidueiary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the Tinanelal year ended WO e 2020

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Name of the Stall
Mr. Benson Muthendi
M. Judy Kimeto

M.,
Mr.

Ms. Truphenah Omung'ala

Ms.
Ms.
Mr.
M.

Nenedict Atavachi
Theahim Musani

Felistas Orandi
Maurine Dosire
Patrick Odanga
Morris Ondiek

Mr. Josephat Maende

Mr.
Ms |
Mr,
Mr.,
Mr.

(¢) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Joseph Alumasa
sahella Kathambi
Samuel Njue
Muorris Murimi
Rabert Mrima

Designntion

Ap. Chiel Executive Ofieer
Lending & Tnvestment Manaper
Finnnee Munigier

A Senior Internal Auditon
o Resonee Mo

Ap Pablic Relations Manager

Ap. Supply Chain Managrer Officer
Lepal Assistant

Enterprise Development Olfieer
Administiation Olicer

Intormation & Communication Technolopy oflices
Muonitoring & Evaluation ollicer
A Credit Manaper

ApMarketing & Linkages officer
Senior Accountant

To carry oul ils mandate the Fund is run by o Board of Directors who discharpe their duties

through the following hoard comimiltees;

Operations and Strategy Commillee

-

e Finance Committee

e Audit, Risk and Compliance Commitice

e Human Resource and Administration Commitiee

iviPage

(% CamScanner


https://digital-camscanner.onelink.me/P3GL/g26ffx3k

Youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Operations and Strategy Committee

In order 1o provide effective oversight on the operations of the Fund and delivery of its core
mandate, the Operations and Strategy Commitice was established by the Board in its 73" Full
Board meeting held on 30™ July 2020. Its mandate is:

1. Development, review and implementation of the Fund's Strategic Plan;

ii. Alignment of strategy to the national development goals and sector performance
standards;

iii. Development and/or review and implementation of the Fund's Resource Mobilization and
sustainability strategies:

iv. The establishment of strategic partnerships and collaborations;
v. The performance contracting process;
vi. Development/review of loan products;

vii. Reviewing and recommendation of loans above the Executive Committee threshold and
loans to financial intermediaries;

viii. Review and implementation of the Credit Policy, Commercial Infrastructure Policy.,
Enterprise Development Policy, Market support and Linkages Policy and related policies:

ix. Oversee performance and identify arcas of improvement in;
*  Credit. Recovery and Risk lunction;
e Commercial Infrastructure programme;
e« Market Support and Linkages programme; and
e Capacity Building and Enterprise Development

x. Undertake any other business as directed by the Board or relevant to the mandate of the
Commitiee.

The membership of the committee during the year under review was as follows;

e Dr. Grace Wambui Kibuku - Chairperson
e Mr. Raymond Ochieng

e Dr. Susan Njoki Mambo

e Mr. Amos Mogeni Isoe

e Mr. Benson Muthendi — Secretary

Finance Conumittee

The Finance Commitiee is responsible for the Finance and procurement functions of the Fund,
The terms of Reference include;

i.  Preparation and implementation of the Fund®s annual budget
ii.  Preparation and submission of the Fund’s financial statements within timelines as
stipulated by law and Government policies

v|Pape
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Vi,

Preparation, monitoring and presentation of internal YEDF fund documents including, but

not limited to:

e Cash Tow stalements

o Creditors & debtors reports

o Quarterly Profit & Loss statements

* Financial statements on product performance
Address any other Finance related matter incidental thercof,
Preparation ol the Fund’s procurement plans, its alignment with approved budget and
implementation;
Maintaining of the Fund's assets inventory and disposal of assets and other administration
matlers as may arise [rom time o time;

The members who served on this commitiee during the year under review were:

s Mr. Amos Mogeni Isoe - Chairman
*  Mr. Roy Telewa Sasaka

e Mr. Samwel Kumba

e Mr. Raymond Ochieng

e Mr. David Wambete

e Mr. Benson Muthendi - Secretary

Auwdit, Risk and Complianee Committee

Audit Risk, and Compliance Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the
cffectiveness ol internal controls and business risk system of the Fund. The terms of Reference

include;

vi.
vii.

Obtain assurance from management that all financial and non-financial internal control
and risk management functions are operating effectively and reliably,
Provide an independent review ol an entity's reporting functions (o ensure the integrity of

financial reports.
Monitor the cffectiveness of the Fund's performance management and performance

information.

Provide strong and effective oversight of the Fund's internal audit functjon.

Provide efMective liaison and facilitate communication between management and external
audit.

Provide oversight of the implementation of aceepted audit recommendations,

Ensure that YEDF eflectively monitors compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements and promoles a culture commitied to lawful and cthical behaviour,

The members who served on this committee during the year are as follows:

Dr. Susan Njoki Mambo - Chairperson

L ]
. Mr. Roy Telewa Sasaka
. lHon. Catherine Kasimu Munanyi’e
e Mr. Raymond Ochieng
Mr. David Wambete
. Mr. Ihrahim Musani = Secretary — wef 01/02/202]

(%3 CamScanner


https://digital-camscanner.onelink.me/P3GL/g26ffx3k

Youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stutements
' For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Human Kesource und Administration Committee

The terms of reference are as hereunder

¢ Heview and implementation of the Fund's organizational structure and enabling
Human Keswmrce instruments;

. Address any arising Human Resaurce matters incidental thereof.

¢ Development, review and implementation of the Fund’s monitoring and evaluation
framework;

. Develop, review and implement corporate branding programmes;

. Review of the corporate ICT & Communication policy znd oversight its
implementation;

o Review and implementation of the Fund's service delivery chanter;

s Provide oversight on the Fund's legal operations;

The members who served on this committee during the year are as follows:

Hon. Catherine Kasimu Munanyi'e - Chairperson
Dr. Grace Wambui Kibuku

Mr. Roy Telewa Sasaka

Mr. Samwel Kumba

Mr. Benson Muthendi - Secretary

() Corporate Headquarters

PO, Box 48610 - 00100
Renaissance Business Park
Llgon Road, Upper Hill
Nairohi, KENYA

(p) Contacls

Telephone: (254) 20 2211672, (0723522841
L:-mail: infowyouthfund.go. ke
Website: www. youthlund, go ke

(h) Bankers

Vil [Paypo

(3 ]

Equity Bank of Kenya

Community Branch, NHIF Building, Ragati Road
P.O. Box 75104

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

. Kenya Commercial Bank

KENCOM House, Moi Avenue
PO Box 48400
GPO 00100, Nairobi Kenya
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(i)

(1)

viii | I

Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
.0, Box 30084

GPOy DD o

Nairobi, Kenya.

Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Dox 40112

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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2 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ix|I"ape

CHAIRMAN: Dr., Eng. Victor M. Mwongera, PhD, PE. Date of Birth — 12
May 1986, He is o non-execative Director who holds a PhD in Acrospace
Engineering and Masters in Acrospace Enpineering, both from University of
Bristol, UK, e s an Acrospace Enpineer in the field of unmanned acrial
vehieles (Drones). e is currently working at Kenyatta University as a lecturer
and Coordinator for the newly christened Acrospace Engineering Programme
within the School of Engineering where he mentors youth from various
backprounds. He has also previously worked with University of Bristol as
rescarch colluborator and teaching support assistant, Rolls-Royee PLC as an
undergraduate: engincer and Centum Investments as an investment analyst
intern,

Hon. Catherine M. Kasimu, Date of Birth = 1971, She holds a Bachelor of
Public Administration and s Diploma in County Governance and Leadership,
both from the KCA University. She has over 17 years” experience in Public
Service Administration ot both National and County government levels. She
served as a nominated Member of County Assembly, Kitui, between 2013 and
2007, She has previously worked with the then Ministry of Public Works and
Housing and is currently in private business,

Hon. Kasimu is an independent non- executive Director and chairs the Human
Resource and Administration Board commitiee.

Dr. Grace Wambui Kibuku, Date of Birth = 7" October 1962, She holds
a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science with a focus on International
Relations and Diplomacy. She has a Diploma in Information Technology and
a certilicate in Governanee and leadership. She is also a certilied professional
mediator, Dr. Kibuku has received various accolades meluding the
Devolution Community Awards 2016 Giralle Heroes Awards 2014; Global
Envitonmental Peace Awards 2000 and the Rotary International Distriet
0200 Humanitarian award and Disaster Management Kenya in 2007-2008,
Dr. Kibuku is currently the Managing Director of Green Deserts Global, She
is also a Professional Supreme Court annexed mediator, an Agriprencur and
i member of the Nakuru Business Association,

Dr. Kibuku is an independent and non-executive Director who chairs the
Operations and Strategy Board Committee
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~21% September 1982. He holds
om the University of Ghenl.
ation from the University of

Dr. Joscph Birundu Mogendi. Date of Birth
a PhD in Agriculture, Nutrition and Health fr

Belgium, a Master's Degree in Public Adminisir
Nairobi and a Bachelors in Food Science and Nutrition from the Jomo Kenyatta

University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT). Dr. Birundu has obtained

rience in both the public and private sector. He has previously

vast work expe
Bidco

worked at the African Population and Health Rescarch Center. GAIN-UN,
Oil Refineries. UNICEF Somalia, and Ministry of Iealth, among others.

Ms. Ednah Atisa. Date of Birth - 23 September 1977. She holds a Master of
Arts in Economics, Bachelor of Arts (Economics), Post Graduate Diploma in
Education and Certificate in personal Management. She has attended trainings
in Performance Management in the Public Sector, Strategic Leadership
Development, Policy Formulation in the Public Sector and Investment Analysis

and Planning. Ms. Atisa is currently a Chief Investment Officer at the National

Treasury. She has previously served as an Economist at the same Ministry and

as an Assistant Register at the University of Nairobi. She has also served on the

boards of Anti FGM Board, National Research Fund. technical University of

Kenya, South Eastern Kenya University and Kenya Water Towers Agency

Mr. Amos Mogeni Isoe, Date of Birth — 14" May 1988, He holds a Bachelor
of Commerce degree in Finance and a Diploma in Business Administration,
both from the KCA University. He is currently pursuing his Certified Public
Accountants studies and is an entrepreneur. He has previously worked as a
Business Assistant at the Titans Business limited and a Direct Sales

Representative at | &M Bank.

Mr. Isoe is an independent non-executive Director who chairs Finance Board

Commillce

Dr. Susan Mambo. Date of Birth - 27" October 1982, She holds a PhD in
Health Systems Management. a Master of Public Health and a Bachelor of
Science in Environmental Health. She is a professional in grant writing and has
completed various courses in senior management, Food Quality 5[:1m]:1rd> and
Regulations, Master internship training, Statistical Package for Data Analysis
and Bio Safety Risk Assessment. Dr. Mambo is currently the Head of
Depariment, Environmental Health and Discase Control at thc'.lornn Kenyatta
University of Agriculture and Technology. She has previously worked as an
Assistant Lecturer, a full time lecturer in the faculty of Public ilcaith. and is a
faculty Member at Jomo Kenyatta University of Agricullure and Technology

(JKUAT).
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Dr. Mambo is an independent non-executive Director who chairs, the Board Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committec.

Mr. Samuel K. Kumba. Date of Birth — 19™ February 1980. He holds a
Master of Public Administration and a Bachelor of Arts in Communication and
Media Technology. He has attended trainings in Senior Management. Strategic
Leadership  Development, Economic and  Financial Reporting, Good
Governance, Covering Elections, Management of Meetings and Minutes
Writing, Quality Management Systems, Implementation of 1SO 9001:2008,
Fire Marshal and Emergency First Aid and Training and Standard Awareness
(1SO 9001:2000). He is currently the Director Corporate Communications at
the Kenya School of Government. He has previously worked as a Senior Writer
al the Nation Media Group, A Business Writer for the Financial Post: A
Reporter at the Kenya Times Media Trust and a Television Producer of Sauti
d Radio.

Mr. Kumba is an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Roy Sasaka. Date of Birth = 10™ October 1987. He is the Chiel Exccutive
Officer of the National Youth Council (NYC), a state corporation with oflicial
mandate for advisory, research and policy institution on youth affairs in the
country. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Sasaka served as the Head of Procurement
at the Kenva Deposit Insurance Corporation (KDIC) and as the Deputy Head of
Procurement at the Competition Authority of Kenva (CAK), among other public
and private sector institutions. Roy holds an MBA in Operations Management,
a Bachelor of Arts in Communication and Political Science as well as a Bachelor
of Commerce in Procurement and Supply Chain Management, all from the
University of Nairobi. He is currently pursuing a PhD with a focus on Operations
Optimization from the same institution.

Mr. Raymond O Ouma: Date of Birth September 23" September, 1983;
He is currently pursuing PhD in Development Studies. He holds a Master of
Arts in Sociology and Community Development and a Bachelor of Arts in

Theology.
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Mr. Wambete holds a Masters' degree in [:conomic PII|IE}: l'\"h_llllflf._'(-*!i'if-‘.l'?' ::;::;
Makerere University (Uganda), and a ““dwlf”“' ""'_f"r""" " l"_('fJ"'?”Im'd: [isk
Moi University. He also has a Certilficate Project .F'lp]'”aill‘l'--l an 5K
Management from Duke Centre for International lJc'.-ulr:m!wnl flisA). e
worked as a District Developmenl Officer where he was
' overall development planning. specifically, he
I projects implementation .
(under the Constitucncy Development  Fund),
cation Commission). Millenium
others. Mr. Wambete
ithin and outside the

He previously
responsible for the District
oversaw  programmes  ant
Constituency development
eradication (under the Poverty Lradi
and HIV/AIDS management among
al courses w
olicy, programmes and project
Transhoundary
Perfonmance

in arcas such s

poverty
Development Goals,
has undertaken numerous short profession
Country. The  courses attended include: |
management;  Results bascd monitoring  and evaluation;

resources  management; Quality  managemenl  sysiems,
management; Urban planning for developing countrics; and Senior managemenl
course. Mr, Wambete is currently a Principal Finance Olficer in the National

Treasury. He is pursuing a course in accounting.

Mr. Benson Muthendi, Date of Birth = 1'' May, 1969

Mr. Muthendi helped found the Youth Enterprise Development Fund in 2007,
Ile has extensive expericnce in youth development, community education and
outreach. He holds a Bachelors of Education degree from Mo University,
Diplomas in Public Relations and - Management, and a  certilicate in
Communication and Learning Technologies from Aharon Ofri, lsracl. e is
currently finalizing @ Master's degree in Rural Sociology and Community
Development. He has been head of the Communication and Fraining section ot
the Kenya Institute of Education where he also worked as a radio and TV
programmes script writer and producer. He served as the communication and
community mobilization officer lor GOK/UNICE] ILFL project in Northern

Kenya.

3, MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ms. Truphena Omungala

Mr. Benson Muthendi
Human Resourees

xii | [Pu

4

Ag.Chicl Execulive
Officer

B.Ed(1Tons) in Arls,
Diploma in Public
Relations Mpt., Diploma
in Manapgement,
Certificale in
Communication
Technologics, Finalizing
AMLA in sociology &
community Development

Manapger H.CON,
Masters in Commerce
(Business Administration)
Diploma in Human
Resource Mg, Diploma
in Labounr Market,
currently pursuing CI'S
and Advanced Diploma in
PPsychology.
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—— LY Ms. Judy Kimeto
Lending & Investment Manager
Bachelor's degree in Business Admin
currently pursuing professional courses in
Finance and Accounts

istration, MBA:

CPA Benedict Atavachi

Finance Manager
MBA (Finance),
B.Com (Accounting)
Certificd "ublic
Accountant CPA (K)

Date of Birth- 1979 R
T TrTEF T |

CPA Ibrahim
Musani, Internal
Auditor CPA (K),
B.Com

Ms. Maurine Bosire
Ag Supply Chain
Officer

B.Com (Supply
Chain), Member
KISM

Felistas M. Orandi
Ag. Public
Relations Manager
B. Arts (Public
Relations)

4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Youth Enterprise Development Fund (YEDF) is on¢ of the strategies launched by the Government
of Kenya in the year 2006 1o address the challenge of youth unemployment in the Country, The YEDF is
mandated 1o ofter affordable financial and business development support services 1o youth keen on
engaging in entreprencurship as a career path and a means to carn a living. The fund seeks to turn youth

into job creators and not job seckers.

To date, the fund has supported over 2 million youth with loans worth Shs. 14.1 billion. This has been
achieved by revolving the Shs.4.5 billion [rom the National Treasury. The loan repayment rate is at eighty
percent (80%). At least 700,000 youth have been supported with business development services.

During the period under review, the YEDF ensured that its operations were aligned to the government's
priority areas such as the Big 4 Agenda, Vision 2030 and the Kenya Youth Development Policy 2019.

i | o v
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cconomic empowerment. To ensure

portunities for youth :
activitics as well as reengineered

This is because the priorities present great op
I and sensitizalions

their full participation, the fund carried out outreac
its loan products to meet their entreprencurial needs.

the Covid-19 pandemic largely due to the
and the young entreprenears in
J measures to cushion

The Country’s economic growth was greatly disrupted by
measures undertaken to slow down the spread. The business community
particular were the hardest hit. During the year under review, the fund implemente .
vouth owned enterprises against the effeets of the pandemic, The measures included giving moratorium
on loan repayments, temporary suspension of the listing with CRB as wellas providing financial literacy
cervices and support. The Fund disbursed a wotal of Ksh. 715 million in loans since the first case of
COVID-19 was reported in Kenya, These loans went 4 long wat 1o sustain youth owned enterprises,
thereby enabling them to diversify into new opportunities, and 10 maintain employecs.

The YEDF is in the second year of implementing its I eyele strategic plan covering the period 2020-24.
The blue print outlines four key result arcas that will keep us focused on our future dircctions and guide
our day to day work. To deliver on this critical arcas the strategy ensures efficient and effective service
delivery through a strengthened institutional capacity and operations. This strategy seeks to expand and
adopt diverse cost effective revenue streams through collaborations and strategic partnerships so as o
ensure that the fund remains sustainable and reduce dependency on the exchequer.

5. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ot Fund (Y EDF) strategic focus is economic empowerment and ereation

The Youth Enterprise Developme
a through enterprise development and facilitating credit access

of job opportunitics for the youth of keny
through provision of alfordable business loans.

Our focus, during the year under review, was o increase Joan uptake among youth entreprencurs and to
provide them with business support services to enhance sustainability of their businesses. The Fund
disbursed a total of Shs. 580.7M against a target of Shs.575M. At least 87,944 benefited from our
business support services against a targel of 85,850, This was achieved despite the negative impact of

Covid -19 pandemic on youth ow ned businesses.

One of the major challenges that affected optimal delivery ol our services during this period was
inadequate financing from the exchequer. The lund received an income of Kshs, 299,290,000 for the
recurrent vote and Kshs, 30,000,000 for the development vote, The loan recovery targel ol Kshs. 3200
“This was because the Covid-19 erisis alTected the ability of our beneliciarics to repay their
the measures undertaken to curb the spread of the virus.
he amounts of loan recovered in the nest financial year,

was not mel.
loans. Muost ol |
The fund has put in place stralegies (0 INCICASE 1

heir aperations were affected by

To enhance service delivery. the fund entered into partnerships with various institutions aimed at
mobilizing resources. The Fund partnered with the National Employment Authority (NEA) and other
sakeholders to offer training 1o youth travelling to take up job opportunities outside the country ata small
fee. The fund also p'.lrmcrml with the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) to train youth in
cs on entreprencurship and how 1o access credit to start and expand businesses for

marginalized counti
The youth trained were from Baringo, Turkana, Marsabit, Wajir and Tanariver

self-cconomic growth.
counties.

siv|PPage
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akeholders from both the

To elfectively deliver on its mandate, we endeavour to actively engage all our st
ng the youth fo create

public and private sectors. Their support and leverage will go a long way in shapi
the much needed impact that will spur economic growth of our country.

6. STATEMENT OF YOUTH ENTERPRISE DEVELOPEMNT FUND PERFOMANCE
AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR FY 20202021

Section 81 Subsection 2 (1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer
1o include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government enl ity's performance against

predetermined objectives.
The Fund has four strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the Y 2020/2021-
2023/2024. These strategic pillars are as lollows:

Pillar 1: Afordable Credit

Pillar 2: Business Development Services

Pillar 3: Resource Mobilization

Pillar 4: Strengthening Strategic Operations

Further, the Fund's strategic objectives as outlined in the stratepic plan are 1o
g

i, Grow the revolving fund kitty

ii. Increase loan uptake

i To facilitate establishment and sustainability of youth owned enterprises

iv. To promoie youth-owned business innovations

v. Promote collaborations and strategic partnerships

vi. To expand and adopt diverse, cost effective revenuc streams

vii. To strengthen the Fund’s institutional capacity and operational efficiency in service delivery.

The Board develops its annual work plans based on the above strategic objectives. Assessment of the
Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis through the performance
contracting targets progress reports. The Fund performance targets as sel out for the FY 2020/2021 period
for its four strategic pillars are as indicated in the diagram below:

]_.’ilratcgir Objective(s) | Key Performance | Activifies Achievements "
| Pillar Indicator(s)
I
| Affordable To Grow the | Amount of loans Enhanced loan Recovered
| Credit revolving fund | recovered/repaid recovery elforts Ksh.273.7 Million
; kitty back 10 the revolving ol loans disbursed
|i | fund
' To increase Amount of loans Loan disbursements | Disbursed

loan uptoke disbursed 1o youth to youth owned Ksh.580.7 Million

entreprencurs enlerprises 1o youth enlerprises

xy|Page
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Sensitized and

Business
Development
Services

“To facilitate

establishment
and
sustainability
ol youth
owned
enlerprises

To prmlmh
youth-owned
business
innovations

Resource
Maobilization

To expand and
adopt diverse,
cost  effective

Number of youth
sensitized and
trained in
entreprencurship

enrolled and
mentored ina
business mentorship
program
Number of wlllll
facilitated/supported
1o aceess markel for
their products

Number of \nulh
supported 10 access
business innovation
and incubation
fucilities

Number of MOUs
signed/Strategic
Partnerships/Collabo

Undertake
entreprencurship
trainings and
sensitizalions across

Enrol and mentor
youth in a business
mentorship program

Hllppnrl-’lm ilitate
youth to market their

products

locally/internationally |

through tor example
market exhibitions,
trade tairs, ASK
Shows "
Tacilitate and suppart
vouth o boeess

business — inpovation
and incubation
facilitics through
partnerships and

colluborations — with
husiness

innovation/incubation

skills hecountry L

hubs o

Source and engage
strategic development
partners and

trained 82,560 youth
in entreprencurship
skills

{ mentored 2,056

I youth in a business
mentorship program
TFacilitated 1,250
youth 1o access
market for their
products

Supported 1,222
vouth 1o access

f business innovation
Cand incubation

services

The Fund partnered
with the National
Employment
Authority (NEA) to

revenue
streams

ration

collaborations to
mobiliz¢/raise Tunds
in-cash or in-kind to
fill resource gaps al
the Fund

Amount
mobilized/raised
[rom resource
mubilization
initiatives

Lobby and mobilize

funds in-cash or in-
kind from strategic
development partners
and collaborations

offer Home Care
training to youth
taking up domestic
jubs abroad at a
small fee. In
addition 3 strategic
partners were
brought on board.
The Fund raised
Ksh.67.2 Million
through various
sources
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Strengthening | To wrengthen | Status of the [Complete Phase I of  Phase Il of the ERP
Strategic | the Fund's | Enterprise Resource | the ERP installation m'f.a‘H'».!lmn project
Operations | institutional | Planning (ERP) _' wias Initiatad and at

| capacity and | installation : its final stage of

| operational | | (completion ________

efficiency in | Number of stafl | Undenake 2 staff Staff Training Needs
| service | trained 1 build | training needs Asseisment was .
| delivery | capacity and | assessment undenaken
| enhance competence | Develop a staff Staff Trzining

| ’ | training program/calendar

J | | program/calendar | was developed

| ‘ | Facilitate training for ~ Trained 38 stafT 1o

| | | the identified staff build capacity and

J‘ ' | ___, enhance competence

| ' Ab&t;;:l'[iim capa.':fl_:;‘ Monitar and ensure | Attzined 100% .

} | of alloczted funds | compliance of PFM absomptinn capaciy

. . LAc2012 | ofallocated funds |

; Development of a Undertake Developed a risk

i risk mitigation | development of a risk | mitigation t

| | frarnework | mitigation framework  framework .

i i | .

. | Development of Initiate development  The Fund's Strategic |

| YEDF Strategic Plan | of the Fund’s Plan 2020 - 2024

| | 2020 - 2024 | Strategic Plan 2020 - was finalized and

| f | 2024 through seeking | launched in

E j ' relevant approvals February 202) ina

| | | Stakeholder cerernony graced by

E ! validation of the His Excellency the

 Draft Strategic Plan | President.

{

{

; [.aunch and

| dissemination of the
| Strategic Plan 2020 -

E
]
|
|
E | 2024

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Bemrd is responsible for the lung-term strategic direction and sustainable growth of the Fund.
Itis committed to ohserving the highest standards of corporate governance and has set transparent
and clear policies, procedures, structures and systems, which achieve effective, prudent. inteprated
and consistent managernent and oversight of the Fund's activities. These enhance risk
manzgement. internal controls and cost effectiveness of the Fund in line with the Fund's Vision,
Mission and Strategy.

The Board's conduct is regulated by the provisions of the Board Charter. [t defines the governance
parameters within which the Board exists and operates, sets out specific responsibilities of the
Baerd, members of the Board 2nd Board Committees. It also stipulates the policies and practices
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ts, conflict of interest, Code of conduct,

of the Board in respect of induction, appointmen
s among others.

performance evaluation and remuncration of the Dircctor

of the Fund is delegated to the Chief Fxecutive Officer bul the Board is
provided with full, appropriate and timely information so that they can maintain full and effective
control over the activities of the Fund The Chief Executive officer is the accounting officer who
is responsible and answerable 1o the National Assembly. He has a duty 1o Parliament to be held
to account for all policies, decisions and his actions. The Board had the following meetings for

the period under review;

The day-to-day running

i) Full Board Meetings - 11
i) Board Commitice meelings - 19

With respect 1o succession planning, Board members are appointed by the Cabinet Secretary
within certain intervals to avert the crisis that would ensue after lapse of some of the Board
member(s) term. The said members are irained as per the dictates of Mwongozo, the Code of

Governance for State Corporations, 2015 once appointed.

Board members performance is evaluated annually in accordance with the State Corporations
Advisory Commiltee’s calendar year. This is meant o measure the Board’s capacity 1o exeeule
its mandate while advising and or recommending corrective measures where the same is desirable.
During Board meetings. members are required to declare any conflict ol interest they may have
over any of the agendas 10 he deliberated: this is then captured and/or recorded in the minutes and

the declaratinns of interesl hoak.

The office of the Auditor General is responsible for auditing the Fund's books and systems
annually, however, the Fund on need basis may conduct an independent I_cguh’gm-crnmmc- audit

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

nced marked improvement in financial performance largely buoyed by prudent
4 rise in financial performance compared to prior year. Revenues
from exchange transactions reduced by 1% due to the need to put on hold the Imn;u:cnn: Ir.'linim:;
that were affected by the restriction al international travels due 1o the COVID 19 pandemic. 1 he
expenses over a similar period last year reduced by 8.6%. The total assets did not inc!uuw-h\- a
large margin but was on the upward trend with the Fund's Liquidity dropping compared l.u pr'i:;r

The Fund experie
financial management with a 74°

vear.

This is expected to be sustained in the intervening years as the Fund capitalises on the investment
in information communication technology which project is expected to be ﬁlﬂ-’]“ﬁl..'(] i L'“t
financial year. The project is expected to boost the Fund’s operational efficiency ﬂL:-IU\q, the ;; “L;
Furthermore, the management is cognisant of the fact that the Fund’s financial ch"m.:- e .(-‘ilr \
the deficit and its wrnaround strategy seems Lo bear fruits. The Fund h-mpm 0 ‘“'mL.L oy
obligations in entirety and docs not anticipate any cash outflows resultin ﬁﬂl-h N I‘h A
The Fund trained 63,813 youth on entreprencurship skills and access 1o Gi\-cn l1‘ﬂll-1-0n.1ph:||wu.
Opportunitics (AGPO). Armed with such key skills, the Fund is hopeful that : l::;:n[ paE e
(urn out o be a success in terms of successful businesses. ’ at credit advanced will

xviii [ PPage
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Cognisant of credit as the lifeline of business, the Fund
and recovered a total of Kes 273M with most of the youth businesses strugeling due 1o the Covid
19 pandemic. The fund registered marked success in supporting youth to market locally produced
goods and services, development of strategic plan, access lu-1-'.'r.hn[ual knowhow and working
space. Whereas the Fund did not achieve set targets in most mandate arcas, it prides itself in
having a better performance compared to prior year across all mandate areas,

advanced a total of Kes S80M in loans

9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The Youth Enterprise Development Fund (YEDF) recognizes environmental protection as
one of its guiding principles and a key component of tound business performance. The
YEDF is dedicated to the practice of sound environmental stewardship and promotion of
health, safety and well-being of its employees. The Fund operates in compliance with
environmental laws as stipulated by the government of Kenya and strives 1o use best
environmental practices in all that we do. These practices initiate from the top
management and are emphasized through all levels of responsibility within the
organization.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

This YEDF has developed its Environmental Policy that aims to provide a holistic
framework to guide and ensure environmental sustainability in the course of
discharging its mandate. In its development, the fund sought input from its board
members, employees, suppliers and the youth who form its primary clientele. Upon
completion, the policy is continuously cascaded to its employees through regular
training. The funds’ clientele and suppliers have been made aware and encouraged
o adopt effective environmental practices,

Guided by this policy. the fund has employed strategies to minimize on the use of
hazardous materials, energy, water, as well as the generalion of waste, We
continuously seek opportunities to improve our environmenlal performance by
establishing targets. measuring progress and reporting our results specifically but
not limited to paper, water, energy. and fuel consumption of our vehicles.

ii) Environmental Performance

In an effort to reduce on the number of trees being cut down to manufacture paper,
all staff of the Fund endeavour to communicate through electronic means, and
avoid printing to the extent thal it will be possible. Staff are also er!cuuraged to
print on both sides of the paper. Documents that exceed one page.' if -prlnled on
one side of the paper. are not accepted. In addition, the fund uses liquid soaps to

lil’l.n._'_ o
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reduce on solids that block sewer pipes. The Fund uses self-stopping taps in its wash
rooms to reduce on incidences where taps are left running. All staff are encouraged
to switch off lights and electrical appliances in their offices when leaving for

meetings.

High rate of unemployment and the resultant increased poverty levels among the
youth have shown to impact negatively on the environment. The fund seeks to
economically empower them through provision of affordable financial and business

support services. The fund encourages its beneficiaries to conduct their businesses
in adherence to sound environmental practices: to plant and nurture trees within

their communities: as well as to undertake business ventures that promote
environment conservation. The YEDF keen not to finance businesses that engage in

activities that are harmful to the environment.

iii) Employee welfare

This is guided by the Board’s Human Resource Manual which takes cognizance of the
Constitution of Kemya 2010, Labour Laws, relevant legal status and the Public Service
Commission Human Resource policies and procedures manual, 2016. The manual
embadies the general conditions and terms outlining the obligations and rights of the

Board as an employer and those of its stafT.

Recruitment is well captured in the policy thus leaving no room for ambiguity and provides
clarity on this key aspect. Our Employee w ¢lfare policy 1akes into an account the gender
ratio and the Board abides by it during the recruitment process to ensure full compliance

challenges notwithstanding.

Further, the policy gives clear guidelines on promotions and career growth of stafl. The
Fund strives to expeditiousiy fill vacancies by promotion of suitable employvees.
Consideration of promotions is in accordance with the provisions of the career euidelines
developed for cach cadre. Employees who have experience, qualifications and proven

merit are first given priority.

On staff performance appraisals svstem. it is predicated upon principle of work planning
setting of agreed performance targets, feedback and reporting. This process is linked tr;
other human resource systems and processes including employvee development, career
guidelines. placement, rewards and sanctions. The Board is vet o implement the Eic\\ﬂrds
and sanctions policy as the same is at draft level and vet to be presented to the relevant

committee of the Board of Directors.

The Board is currently in the process of developing safety and health Act of 2007 (OSHA
The committee has come up with a draft which is due to be presented to the ;:Ia\'unl ‘an )d
committee for approval :}nd adoption. The policy is 1o be amended from time to 1 iﬂf
and when necessary. This changes will require authorization of the Board and '.l”-hT o
Government agencics where necessary and will be communicated to empl wos| f'- 'L"‘am
e s employees in writing
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The other policies besides this HR policy that takes care of the employee’s welfare al the
Fund and are available include the following:

1. HIV /AIDS Policy

2. Gender Policy

3. Disability policy

4 Whistle blower policy

5 Reward and Recognition in draft form

6. Safety and occupational health Act of 2007 in drafl form,
7. Stafl welfare policy besides the HR policy.

All these are policies on welfare catering for the interests of staff and they are reviewed
from time to time for update.

iv) Market place practices
a) Responsible Competition practice

The YEDF is an affirmative action fund established by the government of
Kenya to address the challenge of youth unemployment through
entreprencurship. The Fund is mandated to provide alfordable financial
and business supporl services to youth interested in business as a means
to earn a living. The fund seeks to turn youth from job seckers lo job
creators. The fund is fully funded by the exchequer and therefore not a
profit making entity. Its loan products arc highly subsidized and business
support services offered at no cost. They therelore do not compete with
commercial institutions operating in the market

b) Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier Relations

Youth Enterprise Development Fund maintains good business practices with its supplicrs

through

Proper maintenance of records

We cnsure that we have proper documentation [rom the suppliers on their capability and
ensure that they have all the qualifications that are required. This is also done through
ensuring that all documentation is well done from the first stage to the final for prompt

p:}}'mtnl purposcs,

Regular meetings
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i B b yre values,
We have reeular Meetings to provide the organization with a regular forum on core

allowing members 1o realign principles and give perspective on business practices. In these

meetngs we discuss the following:

< Co-ondinate our supply schedule with theirs.

< Discuss wans 1o reduce overall costs through timing of orders/contracts.

2 Consider additional products or services that our supplier could provide.

& Update them on strategic changes or new products early on - this helps them adapt to
meet those changes.

< Analyse how well we forecast sales and plan to meet our supply needs. Sharing the
results of this analysis with our suppliers will allow us 1o develop accurate supply plans

< Use a purchase order system to control and monitor the binving of goods and services
from suppliers - this facilitates internal financial controls and prevents specification
misunderstandings at the supplier’s end.

< Pay bills promptly. Paying late will strain our relationship with the supplier and could

lead to less favourable terms in future.

Use technology to improve efficiency

A high speed Internet connection allows us to collaborate more closely with our suppliers

through sharing plans, forecasts and consumer data,
Sharing such information with our suppliers makes it easier for us to:

< analyse real-time information about sales, orders or market trends

% forecast and react quickly to changes in demand

“ improve efliciency - accurate information on stock means you will only order the
supplies yvou need

The Fund is in the process of implementing an ERI® shstem that will enhance the
procurement process to be faster in terms of service delivery to our internal and external
customers . | .

Serviee level agreements

“ii I I’ I
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Service level agreements (SLAS) are agreements or contracts with suppliers that define the
service they must provide and the level of serviee to be delivered, and which also set oul

responsibilities and prioritics,

SLAs themselves are contractual obligations and are often built into a contract - in the
form of one or more clauses or as an entire section, SLAs can be used inany supplier contract

where a business' ability to meet its customer requirements is dependent on the supplier

Review our suppliers' performance

We review our suppliers' performanee at regular intervals, 11 we have a service level
agreement (SLA) it helps us to assess the business/supplier relationship in the most objective
way possible.

If not, even at this stage it may be worth using an SLA to define the terms and level ol
service you require from your supplier. The review process is particularly important as it

will prevent existing supplicrs becoming complacent.

Asking the following essential questions helps us ensure that we are getting the best possible
deal:
« Price - are we petting the best price? Does our supplier offer bulk discounts or other

favourable terms?
« Quality - are we satisfied with the quality of our supplics?
Innovation - do our suppliers regularly inform us of new products and services that
might help improve our business?
Delivery - are our suppliers punctual? Do the supplies arrive in pood condition?
Account management - do our suppliers respond quickly to any orders or queries that
we place with them?

« SLAs - are your suppliers living up to their end of the agreement?

c) Responsible Marketing and Advertisement

The Youth Enterprise Development Fund (YEDF) is commitled to
responsible marketing of its products and services and to transparency and
honesty in all its adverusing messages. This commitment is drawn from its

xxiii [ 7o
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oode of conduct, core values, senace charter, as well as policies that guide
its operauons

Marketing and advertising 1s cncal o informing our chents aboul our
products and services As such, the YEDF commumnication messages arc well
reviewed prier to pubhishing and disseminating so as to ensurc that they

wth our pohicies and standards. We stnve Lo ensurc that they are
Jegal, decent. truthful, complete, accurate, properly substantiated and not
We ensure that the messages respect human digmity and are

misieading
non-discriminatory i terms of ethnic ongin, disability, or religion.

camply v

Through continuous trmming, the Fund ensures that its employees have a
full understanding of the laws and regulations governing marketing and
sdvertisaing including internal policies and best practices. We do this not just

because it 15 reguired by law but because 1tis the right thing to do

We regularly momtor our comphance to responsible marketing and
adverusing of our products and services and encourage our stakeholders to
raise concerns of any ieregulanties through our dedicated customer service

desk.

d) Product Stewardship

The YEDF s committed to safegpuarding the nghts and terests of the
consumers of 11s loan products and business SUpport services. Al the onset of
the loan application process, the YEDF commumeates true information
regarding the requirements including the costs of processing the loans and any
applicable interests ¢ harged The fund endeavours to answer all questions amt'i
concerns raised by the apphcant

Personal informaton collected dunng the loan applhication process is treated
with utmast conflidentuhty while secunty documents are secured against theft

and any mahcious damage  The chient 15 made aware of the purpose ol the
information collected and tntenbon to transfer to a third party where appheable.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility/Community Engagements

The Youth Enterpnse Development Fund (YEDF) recogmizes that it must
inteprate s busmens values and operations to meet the expectations of its
stukehoitders The stakeholders include the vouth, emplovees, tegulators,
government, supplhers, the community and the envitonment  Through its
CSR programme, the YEDF undertukes corporate social imtatves and
actwvities that will pasitively address the social, economie and enviconmental

challenges facing 1ts stakeholders. These responsibihities are demonstrated

v | P
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within the YEDF corporate social responsibility policy. The YEDF has
committed to carry oul at least one CSR activity every financial ycar.

During the year under review the YEDF carried out sensitization activitics
towards promoting a clean and safe environment. The fund carried our
sensitization and planted trees at Karundas primary school in Kien

constituency, Nyeri County and Miruriiri Boys Seconday School in South
Imenti constituency in Meru County

10. REPORT OF THE OF DIRECTORS

Ihe Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended Junc
30, 2021 which show the state of the Youth Enterprise Development's afTairs.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Fund are; provision of affordable credit and provision of business
development services 10 the Kenyan Youth.

Results

The results of the Fund for the year ended 30th June 2021 are set out on page |.

Directors

The members of the Board of Dircctors who served during the year are shown on page iv to v. During the
vear, Director Dr, Jospeh Birundu resigned and Director Ezra Chiloba was appointed vide gazene Notice
NO.11259 with eflect from 22™ December 2020, Further Director Edna Atisa an Alternate to PS, The
National Treasury was replaced by Director Wambete,

Surplus remission

The Fund did not make any surplus during the year and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.
Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Youth Enterprise Development Fund in

accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015,

By Order of the Board

xav|Pape
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Date

Name: Signature:

Seorvtan to the Board

11. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Qectiom €1 of the Public Finance Management Act 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
requere the Derevtons to prepare financial statements in respext of Youth Enterprise Development Fund,
abich e 3 trwe aad far view of the state of affains of the entiny 21 the end of the financial y ear period
and the operating reselts of the Youth Enterprise Development at the end of the financial year pernod
The Directons are also raguired 10 ensure that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose
with rezsonshle accuraey the financial position of the Fund. The Directors are also responsible for

safepuarding the assets of the Fund

The Directon are respoasible for the preparation and presentation of the Fund's financial statements.
whick gne a truc and far view of the state of afairs of the Fund for and as at the end of the financial
vear ended vn June 30,2021 This responstiliy meludes: (1) maintaming adequate financial management
srrangenents and csunng that these contimue to be eflectine throughout the reporiing peried, (1)
mantanmg proper sccounting reconds, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the firancial
posiion of the entity. () desigring. mplementing and mamtaining internal conmtrols relesant to the
preparstion and fair presentaton of the financial statements. and ensuring that they are free trom matenal
misstatements, whether due to error of fraud, (1v) safeguarding the assets ol the entiry: (v) selecting and
appiying appropnate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable thrlihc

CHTAMSRNCTS

The Directons accept responsibility for the Fund's financial statements, which have been prepared using
sppropratc accounting polictes supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, n
contormany with Internaty nal Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required
by the PEA AcL 2012 and (the State Corporations A<ty The Directors are of the opumoa tiui the Fund's
ements g1ve 2 true and (air veew of the state of Fund's transactions during the finangial vear
ended June M. 2021, and of the entily 's financial posation as al that date The Derectors turther L.~n]im
the campleteness of the accounting records maintained [or the entity, which have been relied upon in the
o the entity » Financial statoments as well as the adequacy of the systems of intermal inancial

Fiman, al viat

Proparaion o
control

Nothing has come 1o the attention of the Directons (o indicate that the entity will not remain a going

concern for ot keast the next twelve months from the date of this statement

Approval of the financial statements

The Fund's financial statements werc approved by the Boardon | 2021 and signed
on its behalf by
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Dr. Eng.Victor M. Mwongera, PhD, PE Mr. Benson W. Muthendi
Chairman of the Board of Dircctors Accounting Officer

12. REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON THE YOUTH ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT FUND.

xxvii[Page
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON YOUTH ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report, which is in three parls

A Report on lhe Financial Statements thal considers whether the financial statemenls
are fairly presenled. in accordance wath the applicable financial reporting
framework, accounling standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have
a direct effect on the financial slatements

B Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazelte notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are appled In a
prudent efficienl, economic, lransparent and accounlable manner lo ensure
Government achieves value for money and lhat such funds are applied for intended

purpose

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Conltrols, Risk Management and Governance,
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations This responds to the effectiveness of the governance struclure, the nsk
management environment, and the internal conlrols developed and implemented
by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of

the entity

An unmodified opinion does nol necessarily mean that an enlity has complied wath all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its inlernal conlrols, nsk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively inthe financial

year under review

The three parts of the report are aimed al addressing the stalutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 2_29 aof the Conslitution
the Public Finance Management Act. 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015 The three
parts of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditar-General

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

financial statements of Youth Enterpnse

dited lhe accompanying
e ek 1 to 27, which comprise of the statement of

Development Fund set oul on pages

Report of the tuchitor-Cieneral on Youth Enterprive Development Fiend for the year emded 30 Jure 2021
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financial position as al 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance.
stalement of changes in net assels, statement of cash flows and '.ta!':rnr:rrri of
companson of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a ',umrnur‘,.r.nf
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance walh the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Acl. 2015 | have obtained all the information and explanations which, 1o the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit

In my opinion, excepl for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my reporl, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial posiion of Youth Enterpnise Development Fund as at
30 June, 2021. and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and comply vath the Public Finance Management Act, 2012

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unexplained Revolving Fund Variance

The statement of financial position reflects revolving fund balance of
Kshs 4,167.798,856 and as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements The
balance represents loan recevables from clients and cash and bank balances held in
the entity's loan accounts However Note 16 reflects trade deblors (loan outstanding)
totalling to Kshs 2 142,195 610 and bank balance of Kshs 31,039,009 included in the
bank balance of Kshs 33338866 as reflected in Note 15 all totaling 1o
Kshs 3,173,097.291 resulling to a vanance of Kshs 994 701566 Management
explained that the variance was due to development  funds totalling to
Kshs 1,083,926.194 that were used g purchase assels, halchenes deposit al chase

bank and program support expenses that were wrongly posted (o revolving fund
accounls as follows;

 Amount
Item —_{Kshs) |
Purchase of Halcheries _ 199.500 000 |
Putiweesicapbal At .. . oo e DR O G |
amount Receivable from Chase Bank | _180 184,856
Programs support Expenses | _156 717 514
Total ___._,.___.._f__._ i e 1,

Further, the vanance of Kshs 89224628 between Kshs 994,701, 566 and
Kshs 1,083,926,194 was not explained and reconciled

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revolving fund balance of
Kshs.4,167,798,856 as at 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed.

2. Unconfirmed Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs 2,899.795.858 and as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements
The balance includes an amount of Kshs.2,503,232 in respect of other exchange
debtors. some dating back lo the year 2011, which includes imprests  of

Report of the Auditor-General on Youth Enterprise Development I und for the year ended 10 June 2002
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Kshs 1,994,048 and Kshs 202,000 both totalling lo Kshs 2,196,848 issued irregularly
to the former Chiel Executive Officer and the Board Chairman respectively However,
the recovety of these imprests is doublful and no provision for impairment has been
made in the inancial stalements,

In addition, included in the receivables from exchange transaclions balance of
Kshs 2,.899,796,858 Is an amount of Kshs.92.281,098 described as loans repaid
unidentified. However, supporting documents indicaling the date, lransaction number
and amount received was nol provided for audit review

Further. the receivables balance of Kshs 2.899,796,858, includes Kshs 180,184,865
owed by Chase Bank Limiled (hat was not supporled by any documentary evidence.
The amount originated from payments made by the bank and for which the bank did

not produce documents to support the withdrawals.

Additionally, no agelng analysis 10 delermine the period the receivables have been
oulstanding was provided.

In the circumslances, the valuation and compleleness of lthe receivables from
exchange \ransaclions balance of Kshs.2,899,555,324 as at 30 June, 2021 could not

be confirmed

3, Doubtful Recovery of Recelvables from Non-Exchange Transactions

The slatemenl of financial position and Note 17 lo lhe financial statements, reflects a
balance of Kshs. 1,620,594 in respect of receivables from non- exchange transactions
oul of which an amount of Kshs 951,593 relales lo renlal deposits of a premise that the
Fund vacated in 2017, but the recovery is yel lo be made Managemenl did nol provide
explanation for not recovering the deposit Further, no provision for bad and doubtful
dabls was made in these financial stalemenls

In the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverabilily of the renlal deposils balance of
Kshs.951,693 as at 30 June, 2021 could nol been confirmed

4. Unsupported Interest from Direct Funding Loans

The statement of financial performance reflects interest and fees of Kshs 65,625,928
ae disclosed in Nole 7 to the financial stalements. The amount includes
Kshs.38 270,063 in respect of inlerest from direct funding. However, the schedule
provided for audit did not reflect Ihe interest rales used and how the balance covering
wo accounting periods were prorated lo ascertain amount reflected in the financial
slatements This is conlrary lo explanatory Note 4(u), to the financial statemenls on
summary ol significant accounting policies regarding revenue recognition which
provides that interest and management fee on loans is recognized when il falls due
using simple interest rates determined al the time the loan is disbursed and prorated
when it relates lo more than one accounting period.

In the circumslances, the completeness and accuracy of inlerest from direct funding
loans of Kshs.38,270,063 for the year ended 30 June, 2021 could not be confirmed.

The'au‘dit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Youth Enterprise Development Fund

Report of the Auditor-General on Youth Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics | have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities In accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
elhical requirements applicable lo performing audits of financial statements in Kenya |
believe that the audil evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriale lo provide
a basis for my qualified opinion,

Emphasis of Matter

Going Concern of the Fund

I draw your altention 1o the disclosure under Note 26 lo the financial statements which
Indicale thal the Fund has been reporling losses over several years, During the year
under review, the Fund conlinued to register dismal performance where the statement
ol financial performance reflects a deficit of Kshs 11,625,570 (2020 - deficit of
Kshs 42 G63 882), a situation thal has prevailed over the pasl six years. This has
¢roded the capital invested in (he revolving Fund and impaired the ability of the Fund

to discharge its mandate and casls significant doubl on the ability to sustain its services
I the foreseeable fulure.

My opinion is however, nol modified in respect of
Key Audit Matters

this matter.

Key audil matlers are those mallers hal,
significance in the audil of the financial stat
report In the year under review.

in my professional Judgment, are of most
ements. There were no key audit matters to

Other Matter
1. Unbalanced Budget

The stalement of comparison of budgel and actual amount refle
and Kshs 365,460,833 in respecl to budgeled revenue and ex
resulting lo unbalanced budgel by Kshs 1,200,000, contrary lo
Public Finance Management (National Government
that budget shall be balanced.

Cls Kshs 366,660 833
penditure respectively
Regulation 33(c) of the
) Regulations, 2015 which slates

In the circumslances, the Fund is in breach of the law.

2. Long Outstanding Payables

The statement of financial posilion reflects a balance of Kshs_?9.251.?53 in respect to
lrade and other payables and as disclosed in Nole 22 to the f:r?ancml slatemenls.
Included in the balance is an amount of Kshs 10,161,795 out of which Kshs 5,511 045
and Kshs 4,650,750 has been oulslanding since 30 June, 2014 and 30 June, 2015

respectively. No salisfaclory explanalion was given for failure o sellie the long
oulstanding accounts payables.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

i ituli dit procedures
by Article 229(6) of the Conslitulion, based on the_au
s:rfgcr:}uﬂ?dexcvepl for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness

i . otarm et Pl it P for the vear ended 30 June, 2001
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources seclion ol my report, | confirm thal,
nothing else has come to my atlention lo cause me lo believe thal public resources
have nol been applied lawfully and in an effective way

Basis for Conclusion

Incomplete Fixed Assels Register

The statement of financial position and Note 19 lo the financial statements reflects a
balance of Kshs 30,035,823 in respect lo property plant and equipment Review of the
fixed assels register provided revealed thal crilical information such as location of the
assels, assel number and serial numbers was not indicated in lhe register

Further, physical verification of the assels revealed thal lhe assets were not tagged for
ease of identificalion and movemenl, contrary (0 Regulation 139(1)(2) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which slipulates that
an Accounting Officer of a national government enlily shall take full responsibility and
ensure that proper conlrol systems exisl for assets and thal preventalive mechanisms
are in place to eliminate thefl, securily threats, losses, waslage and misuse

In the circumstances, the Fund is in breach of the law.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audil Acl, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Conliols, Risk Management and Governance section of my
repori, | confirm that, nothing else has come to my atlention lo cause me lo believe that
internal controls, risk managemenl and overall governance were not effeclive.

Basis for Conclusion
Grounded Motor Vehicles and Motorcycles

Review of the assels register revealed lhat eighleen (18) motor vehicles and two
hundred and ten (210) motorcycles were grounded due lo various mechanical defecls.
Although the Management wrole to the Head of Public Service requesting approval for
disposal on 6 March, 2018 and a reminder on 9 March, 2021, no response had been
received as al the time of the audit

As a resull. the assels continue to deteriorate and any salvage value that could have
been realized from sale may be losl.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330 The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to oblain assurance aboul whether
effective processes and systems of internal conlrol, risk management and overall
governance were operaling effeclively, in all matenal respects. | believe that the audit
evidence | have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

conclusion.

Repori of the Auditor-General on Youlh Enterprise Development Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2021
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Responsibilitios of Management and the Board of Direclors

Management is responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation ofllhesq financial
slatements in accordance with International Public Seclor Accounting Slandards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal conlrol as Management
deternines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements thal are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control, nisk management and overall governance

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to sustain services. disclosing, as applicable, maltlers related lo
sustainability of services and using Ihe applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intenlion 1o lerminate the Fund or 1o cease operalions

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements lo the

Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the linancial slatements are
In compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Direclors is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness ol how the Managemenl monilors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place lo address key roles and responsibilities in relation lo governance
and nsk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audil objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
stalements as a whole are free from material misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or
error, and to 1ssue an auditor's reporl that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Acl, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high leve|
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil conducled in accordance with ISSAls
will always delecl a malerial misstatement and weakness when it exisls Misstalements
can anse from fraud or error and are considered malenal if, individually or in the
aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial slatements,

In addition 1o the audit of the financial slalements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the acliviies,
financial transactions and information reflecled in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authonities that govern them and that public resources are applied
in an effectve way, in accordance wilh the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constilution and submil the audit report in comphance with Arlicle 229(7) of the
Constitution

Report of the Auditor-General on Youth Emterprise Development Fuond for the year ended 30 June, 202]
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Fisther an planewng ang performing he audd of the Bnanoal statements and audi of
pomplkance | congder imernal control i order o give AN asaufance on the
eMetntnpee o miemal portrals ek managemen] and gowmmance procassas and
Bysiemis ih accardance walh the provvisetenn of Secton 701 pa) of 1he Pubie Aadil Al
JOVE and sutbrnd the aleid repar o comphance with Arcle 220071 af the Canslitution

I\t‘. CONEIdes abnn l." {1 I A CORNY Wi { neit Py assanty deaciase all matters in the

Memal continl thal might be matenal wearnerses under the ISHAIR A matenal
WeAkrseLE 8 A COYYDLON o atech he desgn Of Oper AtOn
totrod components dons ned odute |

ol pne or mom of the internal
A relaloerdy W evel e ngk thal misstalernents
Caused by eror of e i amounts that woukd e matenal in telation 1o the financial
tiatements beng audded may occw and not be detected within g limely pencd by
employees n the normal course of performing thesr assgned lunctions

Because of s mhetent mitatons nternal control may not prevent or detec
fussiatements and inslances of noncomptance Alwog progections of any evaluation of
efectveness 10 fulire perods are subyec! to te nsk hat controls may become
Nnadequate because of changes n condtons o that the degree of comphance with
the Fund s polices and procedures may detencrate

As pan of an audd conducted i accordance with ISSAls | exercise professional
juagement and maintain professional skepticssm throughout the audit | also

e ldentty and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or erfor design and perform audit procedures responsive 10
these nsks and oblain audil evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide
a bass for my opinion The nsk of not detecting a matenal misstalement resuling
from frawa is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve
cofiusion forgery intentional omissions. misrepresentations or the overnde of
internal control

» Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimales and relaled disclosures made by the Management

« Conctuae on the approprialeness of the Management s use of the applicable basis
of accounting and. based on the aud! evidence oblaned. whether a matenal
uncefanty easls related 10 events of condiions thal may cast sigrificant doubt on
the fungd s ability lo continue 10 sustan its services Il | conclude thal a matenal
uncenanly exsly | am required 1o draw altenton in the audior s report 1o the
felaled disclosures 0 the hnanoial statements or  f such disclosures are
nagdequate 1o modity my opimnion My conclusions are based on the audit evidence

tained up 1o the dale of my audd report However fulwre events or condibons
may cause the Fund 10 cease to continue Lo sustain its senices

« Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements.
inclugng the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
undesiying transactions and events in a manner thal achieves far presentation

o Obtan suthcent appropriate audil evidence regarding the financial information and
business activibes of the Fund 1o express an opimon on the inancial statements
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Youth Enterprise Development Fund Boand
Annual Reports and Fnancial Statements.
FFar The vear Ended June 30, 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2020-2021 Audited 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs
Revenue lrom non=exchange transactions Notes
Grants (rom Gok fy 209 490,000 299,290,000
299,490,000 299,290,000
Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest and fees 7 (3,623,928 71,671,267
{ther ieome 9 4,035,388 2372031
69,661,316 74,043,318
Toral revenue 369,151,316 373,333,318
Expenses
Use nf Goods and Seraces 14 77,481,748 B4,758,294
Propramme expenses 9 17,057 386 35,050,088
Emplovee costs 10 221,753,271 224,703,898
Board Remuneranon & other related expenses 11 10,148,274 §,58%9,832
Depreciation & amoriisation expense 12 40,705,996 51,929,240
Repasrs & mantenance 13 7,630,210 10,960,847
Toral expenses 380,776,886 415,997,200
(11,625,570) (42,663,882)

Deficit for the period

The notes set out on pages 9 10 26 form an mtegral part of these Financial Statements

The Financial Statements set oul on pages I 10 B were signed on behalf of the Boand of Ditectors by

Eé'ﬁ:\‘: 252 Jot Plegonm

Accounting Officer Head of Finance Chairman of the Board
Dr Lng Victor M Mwongera,
CIPA Benedict Atavachi PhID, PLE

ICPAK M/No. 3081

Date {Jj/ Date
2.‘5// A0 ,'{,_3’/0.5(/2.3:.7_ A 5’/57_5"/’2“1_

M Benson W Muathend
Duare
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Youth |".1!tt'lptl<r Development Fund Board
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For The vear Ended June 30, 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Assers

Current assets

Cash and eash equivalents

Recemables from exchange tansactuons
Recewables from non-exchange transacuons

Inventones

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
lnvestment Property

Intangible assets

Total asscts

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

Total Current liabilities

Net assets

Revolving Fund

Accumulated Deficn

Total net Assets and Liabilities

Note

16
17
18

19
20

21

272

19 13
£ ih

2020-2021 Audited 2019-2020
Kshs Kshs

34,419,871 306,863,299
2,899,796,858 2,574,949,929
1,620,594 1,151,5M
172,330,001 172,330,000
3,108,167,323 3,055,294,822
30,035,822 50,733,824
27,521,196 30,189,970
4,868,866 21,063,085
62,425,884 101,986,879
3,170,593,207 3,157,281,701
79,251,763 84,314,687
79,251,763 84,314,687

1,167,798,856 4,137.798,856
(1,076,457,412) (1,064,831,842)
3,170,593,207 3,157,281,701

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 1o 8 were signed on behalf of the Board of Duectors by:

Accounting Officer
Mr. Benson W Muthends

Date

25 05" 020

Head of Finance
CPA Benedict Atavachu
ICPAK M/No. 3081

Date

25" Jo»” }zm.

Chairman of the Board
Dr. Eng Victor M. Mwonge

'1)—/6-1 ’Z-?m_\
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Yowth Fnterprse l)nrlnpmrm o Boan)

Aol H:[lu:ll sl Fanangyal Sutemicnns

Foi The vear Ended June 30, 201
- STATEMENT OF (

Dalance as a1 July 1 2020

Svrphue/ Defien) fon thy Pertenl

Ml for 1l yeus

Balance as @ June 30 202)

Explantory mote

HANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Heserves

Capital replacement

development resenve Accumulated surplis

Kshs Kshis
4,137,798 854 [I,Uﬁl,”l,ﬂ-ﬂ}
(11,625,570)
000 0
4,167,798 836 [Lﬂ?&,-ll!'u?.-ll]]

These are Capiral reserves and not available for distnltion

They form the rey olving Fund wherefiom lnans are dulsursed

10 JUNF 2021

Taval
Kalhis
34072,067,013

(11,625,570
30,000,000

3,091,341,443
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¥ emarh [ niterpris vk et Fursl] Beard

Lt il ;"fra rti geed | e ] SFiternenes

For The gear Bnded June ¥ 721

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Caskiflerns fermn operating activities
nr:np'l‘t

Corarces Eeoan Coedkl

srferet yral loce

firther iwaowr

Tearsl Recerpta

Payments

Iae oof € wurele sned Seremcen

I'reqrarnume caperci

reeleswr comt

Brned Remuncrarom & other relared cxpenec
II"'_—I' ’l mamICTnre

e veir sdpnements om deprecaanion

Tetal Paymenta

Cashilorws fremn operating  activities

Canhflerws from invedting activities

[Pusebase of Freed e [ntannbile atiete

treseaie in recernables froen crchange tramsachom

Irezcane i tradde aned epber pay abley

et canh [l freen (net canh used in) investing

actimties

Canhflerns from Financing activities

€ rants fromm Comernmment of Kenpa

Met canh Nerwn feorm financing activities

Yoot [hegreane i cash

(ash & cash eyurvalent at the bepnning of the peread

(b & carh egurvalenn at rhe end of the pened

16

n

Andiied 2019-
rn-2n2d 22
Kahs Kb
2NN 22
63,625,027 1671247
3115343 2373051
W0, 151316 371333.318
61080614 24758294
17147 384 3550 188
2,733 224,708 898
16,148.274 83589,832
1631210 10,900 257
. 19,423,135,
326,560,736 134,644,805
43581 84 18,688 513
(1,145,000, 18,938 27
235 £33 993 1216,733354)

1579 565,900

11.584.95]

(345,024,997) (224,056,630)
000 A 335 340 100
M), 000,006 315 340,000
72443427 129941 884
304,861 27) 176,921,415
34419871 J6R63 299
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youth Enterprise Development Fund

wnnual Reports and Finaneial Statements
For the Year Fnded June W0, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information
Phe Youth Daterprise Development Fund Boand is established by and derives its authority and
accountabiling from 1 egal Notice No, 030 The entity is wholly owned by the Government ol kenya
amd is domiciled in Kenya. The entity s principal activity is;

o Provide loans woand for on-lending o youth enterprises

. Attraet and facilitate imvestment in micio, small and
commercial infiastiveture that will be beneficial to youth enterprises

all and medium enterprises 1o develop linkages with

medinm enterprises oriented

. Support vouth otiented micny, sm
lanpe enterprises

v Facilitate marketing of products and services of youth enterpy ises both in the domestic
and the mermational markets

o Provide business development services 1o youth enterprises

. Facilitate employment of youth in the international labour murket

3. Statement of complinnee and basis of preparation

Ihe financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and financial mstriments at
fair value, The prepacation of financial statements in conformity with Tntermational Public Sector
Aceounting Standands (IPSASY allows the vse ol estimates amd assumptions. 1 also requires
management W exercise judgement in the process of applying the entity 's accounting policies The
arcas imvolving a hicher degree of judgement o complenity, or where assumptions and estimates
are significant W the financial statements, v diselosed in Note &,

The fimancial statements ave been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting curweney of the entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PEN Acty the State

Corporations Act and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), The aecounting
policies adopted have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented.

J ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i, Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year
ended 30 June 2021
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Youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

“»

I

Other
Improvements

1o IPSAS

' Applicable: 1" January 2021;

i,

fii.

=

The amendments to the financial statements do not aflect the
financial statements as impairment and revaluation of assets is
yel 1o be effected. Further, the Fund adopied IPSAS Accrual

seven vears ago.

Amendments to IPSAS 13, 1o include the
appropriate references to IPSAS on impairment, in
place of the current references to other international
and/or national accounting frameworks.

IPSAS 13, Leases and 1PSAS 17, Property, Plant,

and Equipment.
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which |
should have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time
Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSASs) was approved.

IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating

Assets and IPSAS 26, Impairmemt of Cash

Generating Assels. ,
Amendments 1o ensure consistency of impairment |
guidance 1o account for revalued assets in the scope of
IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and Equipment and IPSAS
31, Imangible Assels.

IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSASS). |
Amendments to the implementation  guidance  on
deemed cost in IPSAS 33 1o make it consistent with the

core principles in the Standard.
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Youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Finaneial Statements

For the Year Lnd ed June 30, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1]

i, New and amended standards and interpretations in issue hut not yet effective in

ADOITTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Continued)

ended 30 .June 2021

Ht.m:].trll
IPSAS 41:
Financial
Instruments

IPSAS 41
Social Benelits

Effective date and lmpm'l
a\pphr.uhlu' 1" Linuary 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 41 is 1o establish principles for the linancial
reporting of financial assets and linbilities that will present relevant
and wselul information to users of financial statements for their
assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an enlity’s
future cash ows,

IPSAS A1 provides users of financial statements with more uselul
information than IPSAS 29, by

« Applying a single classification and measurement model for
financial assets that considers the characteristics ol the asset’s
cash Nows and the objective Tor which the asset is held;

« Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

maodel that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

« Applying an improved  hedge accounting model that
broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance.
The muodel develops a strong link between an entity’s risk
management strategies and the accounting treatment for
instrnments held as part of the risk management strategy.

Nete The stanidard is nof vele Vet o .'.fu Luun.’

a\ppljmhln I Imu.nn 2023 -

The objective of this Standard is o improve the relevance, faithiul

representativencss and comparability o the information that o

reporting entity provides in its linancial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users ol the financial

stutements and peneral purpose linancial reports assens:

() The nature of such social benelits provided by the entity;

(b) The key Teatures of the operation ol those social benefit schemes;

and

(¢) The impact ol such sociol benelits provided on the entity's

financial performanee, linancial position and cash ows,

Aote e \hmn’rmfn et vefevant to the Board
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Y euth | sterprise Development Fund
Annual Heports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June W, 2021

b

Sandard

! Amemdments
1o (nher IPSAS
rewiting lrom
IPNAN 3 I

I inang tal I

Instrusmients 1
|
|
{

COther
! Improvements
| to IPSAS

|
1
|
.
|
}
|
|

——— IEPE— S

a)

by

cl

Amendments to IPSAS 13 10 update the gudance on classifying |
-ﬂn.m-.'mi instruments on il adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

a)

b)

)

d)

l fMective date and impact:
Applkllﬂr It Janmary 2073;

Amendments 1o [NAS 4 1o update the guidance related lu
the components il korrra bng costy which were inadwvertently |
omitted when IPSAS 1] was ey ‘
Amendments 1o 1S AS W regarding (lustrative gxamples
on hedping and creda nad which were m.xrl'.c-n'cnﬂ;, omined |
when [P AS 4] wan igsued {
Amendments to IISAS 10 to update the gudance for
accounting for financ wl guarantee contracts which were
inadvertently omitted when [PSAS 41 was 1ssued.

Applh‘nhlr I" January 2023;

Amendments to [PSAS 13, 10 include the appropriaie |
references 1o IPSAS on impairment. in place of the current |
references 10 other international and/or national accounting
frameworks |
IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Propeny, Plant, and |
Equipment.

Amendments 1o remove transitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of |
Accrual Basis International Public  Sector  Accounting i
Standards (IPSASs) was approved

IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and |
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Assets .
Amendments 10 ensure consistency of impairment gurdance
lo account for revalued assets in the scope of [PSAS 17, |
Properts, Plant, and Equipment and 1PSAS 31, Intangible
Assetls .
IPSAS 33, First-ime Adoption of Accrual Basis International t
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) |
Amendments 1o the implementation guidance on deemed cost |
in IPSAS 13 1o make it consistent with the core principles in |
the Standard |

Niote  The steersdord o mod relevams (o e HBowarid |

e o———————— e e —————————

Farhy adoption of standards

The entty did not carly - adopt any new or amended standards in year 20202021
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Youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2021 =

Translers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in usc.

¢) Property, plant and equipment

All property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that s directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When significant
parts of property. plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific usefirl lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise. when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
atisficd. All other repair and maintenance costs are

as a replacement if the recognition crileria arc s
assel is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

recognized in surplus or deficil as incurred. Where an
nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured ol its fair value,

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives al

the following rates:

Motor vehicles : 25%
Furniture and Fittings : 12.5%
Office Equipment : 12.5%
Computers and accessories - 33.33%

Motor cycles 25%

A full year's depreciation is charged in the year ol acquisition and none is charged in the year of disposal.

f) Leases
Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Entity, Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating

expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) Intangible asscls

Intangible assets acquired scparalely are initially recognized at cost. The cost o { intangible assets acquired
in a non-exchange transaction is their [air value at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development cosls, are nol capitalized
and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assels is assessed as ¢ither finite or indelinite.

Amortization is calculated on a straight line basis over estimated useful lives not exceeding a period of
Sycars.

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

13
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youth Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are

classificd as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the

classilication of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

are subsequently measured

asurement, such financial assets
alculated by

method, less impairment. Amortized cost isc
and fees or costs that are an integral part of
are recognized in the surplus or deficit. A
nd.

not quoted inan active market. Afer initial me
at amortized cost using the effective interest
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
the elfective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment

general provision of 5% of outstanding loan balances is made at year ¢

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixe
as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention and abi
measurement, held-to-maturity investments arc measured at amortized cost using the elTective interest
ss impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The losses arising

d or determinable payments and fixed maturitics are classilied
lity to hold it to maturity. A fler initial

method. le
on acquisition and fees or cosls that
from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assels

ach reporting date whether there is objective eviden
an entity is deemed to be impaired if. and only
vents that has occurred alier the
on the estimated

The Entity assessesal ¢ ce that a financial asset of an
entity of financial assels is impaired. A financial assel ol
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more ¢
1 (an incurred *loss event’) and that loss event has an impact
ntity of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

if. there is objective
initial recognition of the asse
future cash flows of the financial asset or the ¢
Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

» The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
ankrupley or other financial reorganization

N

The probability that deblors will enter b

L

Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in

arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

i) Inventories
nition. To the extent that inventory was received through

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recog
is its fair value at

non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory
the date of acquisition.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows:

% Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method
and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of

» Finished goods
s based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

manulacturing overhes

14
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y outh Enterprise Development Fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2021 : I

After initial recognition, inventory is measurcd at the lower of cost and net realizable value However, to

the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for 2 nominal charge, that
class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cosi.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale, exchange, or distribution.

[nventories are recognized as an cxpense when deployed for utilization or consum ption in the ordina7y

course of operations of the Entity.
k) The revolving fund

The revolving fund represents money that has been set aside for onward lending to the Youth. This Fond
grows by the annual allocations from the government under the development Vote and may reduce as 2

result of acquisition of assets and support of core programmes.

m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

ned contribution pension scheme where the employees contribute
addition. emplayees contribute

The Fund operates 2 defi 7.5% of the
basic salary and the employer contributes 15% of the basic salary. In

towards the N.S.S.F at the prevailing rates.

The employer’s contributions are charged 1o the Stafl emoluments.
n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of
the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in fo

of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange diff:
arising {rom the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses i the period

reign currency are reported at the staterment
=ty

s
in which they arise.

Related parties

The Fund regards a related party 2s a person or an entity with the ability to exent control individually ar
jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Fund, or vice versa. Members of key managemant ar
regarded as related parties and comprise the Chief Executive officer, Senior Managers. Board Chairman

5
and Directors. There were no related party transactions for the year under review apart from remuneration

L1

for the employment services rendered to the Fund.

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank. shon-term depaosits en call and highly
liquid investments with an original maturits of three months or less, which are readily n:rrw:r‘.i.i::j_- {.:;
known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account balances
include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year.

15
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——

value can be measured reliably. the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements

I
of the periad in which the change occurs.

I

u) Financial Risk Management

The Fund activities expose it to financial as well as credit risk. The fund’s risk management framework
is set out by the Board and implemented by Management focussing on unpredictability of changes in
operating environment 2nd seek to minimise the potential adverse effects by setting acceptable levels of
risk.
Credit risk
This is the main risk faced by the Fund. The fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
likelihood of borrowers f2iling to meet their debt abligations and seeks (o minimize the same.,

Collateral

For C-YES and E-YES Loans, no security is given by the youth 1o the fund However, for the financial
intermediaries. collateral in the form of Bank guarantees, promissory notes and cash flow assignments
are given. For Vuka and LPO Financing. collateral including chattels morigage and immovable property
are given. Furthermore, the Fund has listed financial institutions and individuals with non-performing

loans with Credit reference Burcaus.

t that best represents maximum exposure 10 credit risk as at June 30, 2021 is made up as

The amoun
follows;

Taotal Fully perfoming Impaired
As at 30 June 2021
Receivables from exchange 2.897.203,624 3.049.914,512 152,620,888
Transaclions
Receivables from non-exchange 1.620.594 1,620,594 -
Transactions
As at 30 June 2020
Receivables from exchange
Transactions 2,574,949,929 2.710.398,759 135,448,830
Receivables from non-exchange 1,151,594 1,151,594 -

Transactions

ii)  Liguidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have built
an appropriste liquidity risk management framework for the management of the enlity’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages liquidity

risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.
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b . ‘ Ppa— Cgunting 15 not
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting 15 B

significant,

Less than | month  between I to 3 months  Over s months

As at 30 June 2021

Trade payables 2,000,000 77,251,763

Total 2,000,000 77,251,763

jii) Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is 10 safcguard the entity's ability 10

continue as a going concern. The entity capital structurc comprises of the following funds:
2020-2021 2019-2020
Revolving Fund 4,167,798,856 4,137,798.856
Accumulated Fund (1,076,457.412) (1.064,831,842)
Total 3,170,593,207 3,157,281,701

v) Events after the Heporting PPeriml
‘I'here have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June an, 2021.

w) Ultimate And Holding Entity
The Fund is a State Corporation under the Ministry of ICT Innovation and Youth Affairs. lts ultimate

parent is the Government ol Kenya.

1) Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

y) Continuous Losses.
The Fund has continued 1o report net deficits for the past years. However, the results have been improving
aver the years and it is envisaged that the Fund will report surpluses in the near future. -

(1]
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Youth Enterpnee Development Fund Boand
Annal Reports and | mancial Statements

Vot The vear Faoded June 30, 2021

2020-2021
. Grants [rom Gok Kshs
Income from The Natwonal Treasury 299,490,000
299,490,000
b. Transfers from Ministries , Departments & Agencics
Amount

recopnized to
Statemeni of

Comprchensive
Name of the Entity Sending the Grant Income
Minsstey of 1CT, Youth & Innovanon 299,490,0(K)

7. Interest and fees

Mpt fees - C-YIS 16,319,250

Mt fees - Fasy -YES 31,000
Mgt fees - Duect Funding Loans 2,259,395
Interest from Dircet Funding Loans 38,270,063

16,000

14l bosnd

L0 Mincessng fee 1,781,867

Tuckshups rental 2078600
Processmy fve Apnbizy 1,422,252
Processng fee lalinta 1 10,000
YISA Pre-Departute 2.437,500

YESA Hame care )

65,625,928

K. Other income
sale of Tender documicnts 42,000
sundry Incnme 3,763,588
Secuniy petfenon fee 224 8
4,035,388

9. Pragramme expenses (Program Support expenditure)
Lending ! credut 5,998 414

Youth Laterprse Scheme Abroad

Comnmecre al Infrastruciare 310,830
Market Linkape 044 690
Capacity Ldibng Tor youth colerprses 2 358,515

Hewearch 1onn

Monstonne and [ valuanon IRUE
Resouree Molnlisatn IR 2D
17,057,386

15

Audited 2019-2020
Kshe
20,2490 010
299,290,000

Amount
recopnised in
capital fund.
30,000,004

14,695,700
143,500
1,249,406
31,986,841
73,000
1,429,305
1,99% 504

35115
17,800
20,038,700
71,671,267

25 100
1,632 801
T11.250

2,372,051

4621371
1 B48 ()
1,965,350
3,267 9
6,707 005

416 8%
6, 20K 013
2014295

35,050,088
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10. Employee costs

Stafl Feaming

o nutment

Performance Apprasal amd Beachmarking
Persome! salary and emoluments

Wages far mtcoship programme

Group hife andd Personal Accndent Cover
Medical Expenses

Stafl Wellare

Crratury
Mansrcammg Sensitzation & Surveys

11 Board Remuneration and ather Expenses

Pherard Allowance
Heard Transpon
Clirperson |Honotanum

loand Retreat
Beaard Tramng e Med EAcondent Tnsu B

12. Depreciation and amortization expense

Mopeny, plant and cguipment

Intanglle asscts

13, Repairs and maintenance

Motarcyles and Veluele fuel and gepans

20

2020-2021
Kahs

1,445,530
344 H5A
503,500
179,016,692
1,088,556
2418984
23,592.011
2,662,531
10,419,797
235,750
221,753,271

7,874,525
1,895,241
B A
3,425,449
1,993,mM9
16,148,274

21,511,777
16,194,220
40,705,996

7,630,210
7,630,210

Audited 2019-
2020
Kshs
3,235,445

770,454
173,124,171
2199977
2.A406,63Y
24,912,254
5,067 417
11,545,572
ARG AR
224,708,898

2963377
2,264,332
141,290
976,414
1oAY
B,589,832

13,231,183
18,698,057
51,929,240

10,9610, B 17
10,960,847
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14, Use of Goods and Services

Pravellg Costs

Velephoms Costs

O fice Wemt and Mamtainance

CHhee Statoneny

Audht Fees

1 A'}'.I‘ e

Insurance for Motor Velcle and Fguipments
Tatemet and Nemwork conneetviry, Wibsite and
PRSIy

Covnit/ Postal Services

ffice unhnes

[Hank Charpes

PMiowtstonn for bad delns

Enhanging Frund image

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Wank
Lrent
Casli at-hail

Satancom Apasa

Detailed Analyvis of the cash and cash
cyuivalents

Financial Institution

a) Current accuunt

Equity bank

Pty Vet Fnterpiney Development Fund -Loan
egrayment Account

[aquiry Youth Enterprse Developmut Fund - Main
Equaty Youth Fmeprise Develapmnt Fund - Direct
Pundiyg prisluct

Fgquary Youh Fnterpnse evelopmnt Fund- Uperations
agconil

Fgguity Youth Enerprise Deveopmnt Pl - Meru

Faguty Youth Faterprse [ velupmnt Fuimd - Kisumu
Subnotal

Kenya Commercial Dank
Fot 18 S Account

RO Iepayment Acoonmt
LMY Account

Sulitotal

1) Others
Cash at hand
Mpesa
Subitanal
Grand otal

2020.2021

Kshs
1,373,705
2,399,499

27,425,261
1,187 008
1,392,000
4,259,089
1,486,263

9,808,980
1,198,633
5,085,212
727,098
17,172,058
3,906,900
27,481,748

33,338,860
37,721 00
1,043,278 24
M,A12,871

2020-2021

100,500
3735414

6,747,625

021,941
50

(242)
12,605,288

0,020,015
356,461
11,457,102
20,733,578

3777
1,043,278
1,081,005

4,419,871

Fa

Audited 2019-
2020
Kshs
957,350
2.308,119
25,682,670
3,299,985
2 E81,093
7,374,500
1,970,274

10,381,088
1,131,020
6,810,429
1,759,779

11,019,870
6,181,310

54,758,294

306,250,142
50,424
562,733
306,863,299

Audited 2019-
2020

476,191
6,247,701

20,822,683

5,391,922
50

1217)
33,442,330

245,235,392
721,204
26,850,985
272,507,511

50424
562,733
613,157

306,863,299
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Youth Enterprise Development Fund Board

. :
Annual Reports and Francal Surements

3, 2021

Fer The vear Ended June

16. Receivables from exchange transactions

Current recervables

Terde Aohireres
LDACe Cedain

Other exchange debors

Lese mneacrment 2llomane
{

Loans repaxd umdennfied
Total current receivables
Total receivables

16b. Reconciliation for impairment allowance

on receivahles from exchange transactions

t the bezmnning of the vear

kY -

Ar tne

Adsnoml prmoTisinns to the vear
Ay the end of the vear

{7. Receivables from non-exchange contracts
Current receivables

Prepayments

Less: onparment aflguzner

Total current receivahles

18. Iaventorics

Hiarchenes

Total inventaries at the Jower of cost and net
realizable value

22

2020-2021

1620574

1,620,594

172,330 000
72,330,000

Audited 2019-2020
Fshs

> TR i
g | W
P L o
B
T |
1Ts %
133, —2.57
=0 o) TS
i

172330000

172,330,000
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Youth Untirpnse Development Fand Boand
Annuil Repoms and Fnancul Stacments

Faer The vear Vaonded June 30, 2021

NOTES TO THE VINANCIAL STATEMENTS
19. Property, plant and equipment

Year ended 30 June 2020 Mot Furniture Computers &  Matarycles Total
Velicles and Farings Accessorics

Cast Shs Shs Sha Sha Sha

Ar srarn oof the persd 6,155,104 16940843 121,390,070 45 578 (061 Jul) A 0TS

Addimons " 1R I8 207 . 149307

A end of the pemisd 76,153,164 IR 140,132.277 5,57HA001 199,044 253

Depreeiation

At wrart of the perwsd TNTYAST [l X 11 1] oM I2 6557800 1770 D

Do v . .

(Thange fos the peresd 50MLYT5 1450404604 LNAT1T ¥ 5a2 ALt

Arend ol the pennd 75 044,852 T IRETIY 1300 M 550 65,578 00 348 2T Ak

MNet book value as at 30 June

020 1045312 ¥2454,14 10411 TR 31711525

Year ended 30 June 2021 Matat Furniture Compurers & Mararcy cles Tl
Yehicles and Fimingy Accessanes

Cunn Shs Sha Sha Sha

A start of the pores! HAERN LS [FIRIUETS] 140032277 65,578 i L]

Adddaneie . 1, 145,080 . 1,143, 0¥0)

LR R) A5 STN AN IR et

76,153, 1ind

1T

ot end of ihe prevnsd

Depreciavan

At pran i the penod TH 0 ES2

!Jupn- ale
PaHE 2

TT 280,71

13,55 L0340

AR TELR b

7212053

&5, 57H N

BN 2™ A0

R R AN P

. liwrge fuir b rrrrud

76,151,164

L sG H S

131512952

&S 57N Laa

LRI RN T

A ond of the peres]

Net book value as &t 30 June

206,71 4%

VA5

Lo rils a2y

2011
20, lavestment Property
2020-2021
Commercial Infrastrucure-
Buidding of Buos Shelician)
Sealls Kihs
At azany of the pored et T2 KT
An st of the perwads deprovintaen (T ATLARY)

Adkdion s
2l 7T I

Audined
2019.2020

Kaba
17027
(450,104 5)

(2,668.773)

Depreciatom

27,521,195

30,159,948

3
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NYowath | neerpoe Divvckopemnent Fumsd Meand
Arevual Repesrts sl Fanangul Mrarcments

Fosr The roar Eaded Jure W0, X024

2 Trade and other pavables  from exchangr

transacTorrs

ke I e

(e oof e Aanderne Croneeral
Trross ey Dror prafuey

st [ Rkt

Total trade and other pavables

21 Relared pramy Transactions

The frioramng wiTe the

Ky management compeasanon

alames mind sathet shosrt-torm epmplovment benefits

[hencetises rornUTCTaTE s allimanco

214, Accumulared funds

Balanee b/ f
\dd Serplis (Do) for the quarter

Prun voar Mdpostment

75, Revabang fund

Faterce b /T
i) Heerned durmg the peas

The balance oumseandmg @ the Revolimg

yusuth

6. Conunous Loses

The lund ks eportpd ks b
I".'Irf‘nih.; i

17 Recomcibation of cashflows from Opcranng
actminen 1o [eduect method

et fom thie ponst

Adptements for

Deprociamem

§prwesctus afie m

Peorvinsn for b delits

Prorersson e audit lees

Resductum m trade payahler

Dprranng profit hefore wurkang caprtal changes

Ly relarad parmy transactnms dunng the vear

Audived 2015
X202l 1020
Kals Kahs
1142955 11561 517
2 TEEN 1.17e, 000
a2 MWLTIHS
897035 15013
T9.251,763 84, V14, 884
Audited 2019-
o202l 20
Kahs Kahs
£Ta AL J1E75 184
16,148.274 £ 359,852
24,590,097 30,165,018
Audied 20019-
022021 2
Rahs Kahs
(1054 8318 {1,021 008,021
M1 A23 570 {42,663 852
- (1,159,290
{I.UT!.&ST.#IJI (1,064,830,547)
Audited 2019-
20202021 bk
Kslis Kshs

413779885
) Nie) g

4,167,795 556

},F'-:.l.'\\.ix_ﬁ
A5E S0 T
4,157.795.456

¢ several vears of oureTe Hevanver,
o1 the vears amd 1t LR Taatd that the Famd wall epaomn surpl:

Fuamrd 1 part of the monss whach arc s

2020-2021
(11623570

24.310,777
16,14 220
17172058
| 352
(5062929}

42,551,560

5

borvald 2s loasa b

the resudes have boom
s 1 the pear funet
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APPENDIX I: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW U OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

nts that

of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comme
hown

d focal persons 10 resolve the various issucs as s
t the issues 1o be resolved,

The following is the summary
were provided to the auditor. We have nominate
below with the associated time frame within which we expec

- S —
Focal Point | Status: " Timeframe:

Referen |
| ceNo. ! bt i | personto (Resolve : (Put a dute
Fonthe | o rvations | Management " resolvethe | d/Not | when you
cxterna ' i ' | comments " issue (Name ' Resolved | expect the
1 audit from ANE o ' and 1 ) | dssueto be. |
_Report | sl .Y ___L designation) | resolved)
The delicit gap is !
| . parrowing as the i |
' U"d's.‘:lﬂwu performance improves. | rq | On- | June 2022
- L. i m‘.'.lt:rm_l Rationalization of CE going
g | i expenses priority for !
| | | the Fund | | |
| ! [;GH — 1 Smwﬁ-mfdj"mj . | | '
| P accordingly. cad 0 e
i 2. | sr.';nl-:mn:nlﬂl'cash Comparative figures Finance | Resolved |
| | o | adjusted. | | =
' The current finance and |
! ' No provision [or credit policy provide | CEQ/ Head of
! 3 | bad and doubtful for a general 5% Administration | Ok | 2021722
| | debts on rent provision. The Fund is '/ Head of : BRE l
: | Deposit receivable. pursuing refund of the ' Finance I :
' | rent deposits. | ! |
L : |
i I' }
| Tuck shops income | The difference is CEO/Mead of
| panly accounted ,l attributable 1o non- Commercial | Resolved | E
| 4 | for. | occupicd stalls/sheliers Infrastructure i i
| .
| .' ~' - | |
i ' This relates 10 purchase ] | 1
' [ of assets and program |
‘ | support expenses. The | i
| | Legal notice 63 of 2007 | |
B S ot Vi lon |
s wilimtonol ] gypendires were | €O gty | 2RI
| Wk approved in the Funds :
| | annual budgets. No i '
| | further expenditure | | | '.
, ! | being undertaken on , ! i
- J this vole. -, ' | ;
| . : 1 .
| remonol G| ] |
assets and gl 20 ' On- |
| 8 ' reclassification of assel. Recissulicalion E;:n:::::“d = ! E:::‘ing | 202272023 |
' assiis . f!um: and necessary ' :
| ! | journals passed | | -
[ | The Fund The arrangement is |
E s | Ownership of Land | under lease agreement | CEO | Ongoing mem i
| | wherethe | with the county i - .
26
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ttuckshops sit does | governments of I‘
not belong tothe | Nakuru, Nairobi and : ,
. | Fund. | Machakos | 1 = )
| i :
r | Unsupported Trade | Schedules of Loan & Echiizad ol
| &1 Ipe E 2 : Finance/Head | Resolved | -
tors halances balances provided o
SO R T T | B T —
E | The bulk of these l |
' | Recoverability of | ARSI s h.c Id by ‘ | |
L | long outstanding | the late Catherine _and , |
82 |Impresiswhich | Sruce who have since | iy M 202172022
Inciieihe fossies | died. "|ic Fund is | going
CEO and Chairman | SPloring waysof | |
| recovening from the : |
| estate of the Late. :
[ Non supported ! This is supportied by the |
Provision for | Finance policy that :
83 | Impairmem | pm\'idcsplft;r ageneral | C_EUH—!cad of Resolved | - )
allowance on | 5% provision of bad Fanaacn |
Receivables i debts.
' ! This refers to a case of |
1 fraud which was !
Unsupported Loan | investigated and the |
| Balances — criminal case of the |
8.4 | Kshs!80m lost same ongoing whereas | CEO e 202172022
{ through Chase the Fund is pursuing to | Eoing
Bank | recover the amount
from the bank through a |
| civil suit. s i
| No invesiment made. |
i | Instead the Fund earns
Unsupported | interest on current ' Head of '
8.5 inlerest on TS TR Resolved | -
account balance which | Finance
| Investment . B B
| is al the discretion of
| | the banker
| The same are subject of I__
9 Eoig it | verification and : |
P | Investigations cases | . Not [ 2021/22
| trade payables hence payment shall ' [E‘_EU-Htad of | resolved |
| only be made once TARNaCe
verification is done.
| Revaluation of The assets were N
Inventorics at cost | revalued bun |
which is higher incorporation of the ' CEO E}" s | 202122022
than the net | loss requires approval Eoing
il realizable amount | that may take long.
\
‘ T
1 r
—_— \-..___‘__ﬁw.
Chiefl Executive OfTicer Chairman of the Board
- ~ % -
Dllc_g.;f,’.ﬁ_)_?.nhb nm_l.}J.D.‘é_ _2:_@__1'1'_

27
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~ APPENDIX 11: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

The Fund did not have any projects running during the year.

1 N/A ‘

— 1" —

28
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[5NTITY MM YOUTIENTERPRISE (RATTOPMESTH NN

_ frrak dewe of 1ramsfers frem the Maate Depariment wfl Yiwih

AL
[ | . §. 5} | I Y I s hich LhE ane it LAL;
i
i 1N . !
H R | |
TN I " ¥l
1etsl 4w e
[ (RTS8 e ) ]
tank Staement 1) it [ I . i e toe i b U T marity 1elate
T4 ik ERLLART
L | IRRLE
I otal Pl R R
o 1M vrest Pavvmeerti
Mark Statemend Date | Amosmd ik skl I 'Y ear pi el WhE an sirpls relatg

Totsl .

d | vwrww Reveipis
Wank Statement Datg | Ameount IhSH) L inanceal ¥ g to whigh (he armemanty pglate
Twial 129 40, 00H1 00

The sherve s have been commuenicatad 1o and reconciled winl) the patent Mmsiry

Iead of Accounting Unit

F mans g Mamaper
stinastry of 10T, Innovation and Youth A [Tairs

Yt | ruerproe Development |und

SN

L —_—
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